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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUM^ SERVICES

DIVISION OF LONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SER VICES

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301

603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

January 17, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports
and Services to enter into a Sole Source amendment to an existing contract with Partnership for
Public Health, Inc. (VC#165635), Laconia, NH. to add funding to expand social isolation reduction
strategies to prevent mental, emotional and physical decline for individuals 60 years of age and
older who identify as home-based, or who are otherwise socially isolated, by increasing the price
limitation by $350,000 from $320,000 to $670,000 with no change to the contract completion date
of June 30, 2024, effective upon Governor and Council approval. 85% Federal Funds and 15%
General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 15,2022, item #42.
Funds are available in the follovwng account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are

anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-26380000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEFT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, GENERAL
FUND MATCH FOR ARPA

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 570-500928
Contracts for
Opr Svc

48130623
$160,000 $0 $160,000

2023 540-500382

Social

Service

Contracts

(TIIIB)

48130619

$0 $87,500 $87,500

2024 540-500382

Social

Service

Contracts

(TIIIB)

48130619

$160,000 $262,500 $422,500

ToUl $320,000 $350,000 $670,000

The Deportment of Health and Human Services'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Department is requesting to add more than 10%
of the dollar amount of the original contract, which was originally selected through a competitive
bid process using a Request for Proposals. The Department is able to add to this contract due to
available funds within the Title IIIB American Rescue Plan Act funding. This will allow the
Contractor to provide additional programs and sen/ices to a minimum of six new and existing
community based organizations, such as senior centers, towns, libraries, and community centers,
to increase capacity to offer programming and services that will focus on reducing experiences of
social Isolation and loneliness that were exacerbated during the COVID-19 pandemic. Through
this contract, agencies will have increased capacity to provide additional sustainable programs
and services that utilize different modalities.

The Contractor is currently providing a statewide program to connect older individuals
experiencing social isolation with local or statewide activities, programs, and services that are
focused on enhancing mental, emotional and physical well-being. The Contractor will conduct a
statewide needs assessment, collaborate with community partners to develop a resource library,
conduct outreach activities to the target population and market statewide activities, programs and
services, the Contractor will increase these services around the State by collaborating with new
and existing organizations to focus on strategies which will further help to alleviate social isolation
and/or loneliness for individuals. "Social isolation is one of the most common problems affecting
older adults, which has been exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. Social isolation impacts
mental, emotional and physical well-being and may result in the loss of social resources.

Approximately 800 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the monthly and quarterly reports
provided by the Contractor.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, the Department will be unable
to expand social isolation reduction strategies and will be unable to reach additional individuals
80 years of age and older, who identify as home-based, or are othenvise socially isolated and
may experience decreased mental, emotional and physical well-being which could potentially lead
to cognitive decline, poor memory, and higher mortality rates.

- Area served: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number #93.044, FAIN #2101NHSSC6; and
Assistance Listing Number #93.052, FAIN #2101NHFCC6.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

Weaver

inte>1rh Commission^
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Social Isolation Reduction Strategies contract is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and Partnership for
Public Health, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 15. 2022, (Item #42), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37. General Provisions, Paragraph 17, the Contract may be amended
upon written agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, or modify
the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW-THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$670,000

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Robert W. Moore, Director.

3. Modify Exhibit B, Scope of Services, Section 1, Subsection 1.14. through 1.20. to read:

1.14. The Contractor shall collaborate with a minimum of six new and existing organizations to
increase the subcontracted organization's capacity to offer programming and services to
reduce experiences of social isolation and loneliness that were exacerbated during the COVID-

;  19 Epidemic. The organizations may include but are not limited to:

1.14.1. Senior centers.

1.14.2. Town governments.

1.14.3. Libraries.

1.14.4. Other community centers.

1.15. The Contractor shall collaborate with new and existing organizations for one or more of the
following purposes:

,1.15.1. Operating costs for the provision of programming or services that include:

1.15.1.1. Existing operating costs recognizing that typical income sources were
negatively impacted during the pandemic.

1.15.1.2. Expanded programming or services to meet enhanced need because of
the pandemic.

1.15.2. Capital improvement projects that that serve to mitigate the spread of COVID-19 or
expand or increase the efficiency of programming and services for older persons.

1.15.3. Technology purchases that enable older adults to increase engagement with the
organization, the community, their social network, or healthcare providers.

1.15.4. Other equipment purchases that enable or enhance programming or services for
older adults.

1.16. The Contractor shall provide technical assistance to the subcontracted organizatioilsiyF other

Partnership for Public Health, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials i
RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01-A01 Page 1 of 5 Date
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entities interested in developing and implementing programs to prevent social, isolation and
loneliness.

1.17.' The Contractor shall submit all subcontracts to the Department for review and approval within
30 days of the Agreement effective date.

1.18. To ensure activities, programs and services can continue beyond the completion date of this
Agreement, the Contractor shall:

1.18..1. Engage interns to reassess and modify the webpage, and update materials as
needed to promote continued awareness and access of available activities;

1.18.2. Inform all ServiceLink Resource Centers and Public Health Networks regarding
program updates during regularly scheduled statewide meetings; and

1.18.3. Incorporate social isolation reduction strategies into the. vaccine education and
awareness center, which is in development with the Department, ServiceLink, and
the Center on Aging and Community Living at UNH.

'1.19. Reporting

1.19.1. The Contractor shall submit monthly reports to ensure program compliance which
include, but are not limited to:

1.19.1.1. Number of participants in the previous month;

1.19.1.2. Age ranges of participants as follows:

1.19.1.2.1. 60-69

1.19.1.2.2. 70-79

1.19.1.2.3. 80-89

1.19.1.2.4. 90+

1.19.1.3. Source and number of referrals based on outreach;

1.19.1.4. Dates and contacts made to individuals assisted; and

1.19.1.5. Number of activities, programs and services provided, and the number
of participants for each.

1.19.2. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reporting on pre- and post- survey results to
demonstrate program effectiveness.

1.19.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics to, the
Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.20. Performance Measures

1.20.1. The Contractor shall demonstrate the following performance indicator through pre-
and post-surveys:

1.20.1.1. 60% of individuals report a positive outlook on their quality of life as it
pertains to social isolation.

1.20.2. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by reviewing the monthly and
quarterly reports submitted by the Contractor.

It
Partnership for Public Health, inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials _
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4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This Agreement is funded by:

1.1. 82.6% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 17.9%, AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP), as awarded on 4/1/21, by the US
Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Community Living,
ARP TITLE lll-E, CFDA 93.052, FAIN 2101NHFCC6.

1.1.2. 64.7%, AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP), as awarded on 4/1/21, by the US
Department of Health &.Human Services, Administration for Community Living,
ARP TITLE lll-B, CFDA 93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6.

1.2. 17.4% General funds.

5. Modify Exhibit C-1, Budget, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit C-1, Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

6. Modify Exhibit C-2, Budget, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment 1,
which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

•DS

ft
Partnership for Public Health, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
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y

All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parlies have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

1/5/2023

Date

■DoeuSlgncd by:

Name:'^^'^^'^^ Hardy—
Title: Director, dltss

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

1/5/2023

Date

•DocuSignbd by:

fefie'WlWcarmichael
Title: Executive Director

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01-A01

A-S-1,2

Page 4 of 5
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

DocuSignod by:

1/9/2023 [
Date

Title; Attorney

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: " ' (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Partnership for Public Health, Inc. A-S-1.2

RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01-A01 Page 5 of 5
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BT-1,0 Exhibit C-1. Budget. Amendment 1 RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Budget Request for: Social Isolation Reduction Strategies

Budget Period SPY 2023

Indirect Cost Rate (If applicable) 13.00%

Line'ltem Program.Cbst - Funded by-DHHS;

1. Salary & Wages $98,750

2. Fringe Benefits $20,795

3,. Consultants $2,748

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1
and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

$840

5.(a) Supplies - Educational. $0

5.(b) Supplies-Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $4,645

6. Travel $2,500

7. Software $878

8- (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $19,842

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $1,242

8. (c) Other ■ Meeting Expenses $2,235

Occupancy $8,995

Telephone $1,265

Postage $153

Subscriptions $780

Audit and Legal $1,958

Insurance $1,245

9. Subredpient Contracts $50,252

Total Direct Costs $219,123

Total Indirect Costs $28,377

TOTAL $247,500

%

1/5/2023

Page 1 of 1
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BT-1.0 Exhibit C-2, Budget, Amendment 1 RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01-A01

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Budget Request for: Social Isolation Reduction Strategies

Budqet Period SPY 2024

Indirect Cost Rate (if applicable) 13.00%

Line ltern> Program.Cost - FiUnded by.DHHS

1. Salary & Wages , $189,072

2. Fringe Benefits $47,023

3. Consultants
$5,246

4. Equipment
$936Indirect cost rate cannot be apfdied to equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1

and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.{c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies - Medical $0

5.(e) Supplies Office $4,645

6. Travel
$3,300

7. Software
$1,878

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications $15,342

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $10,000

8. (c) Other - Meeting Expenses $2,235

Occupancy $10,795

Telephone $2,654

Postage $380

Subscriptions $500

Audit and Legal $2,472

Insurance $2,042

9, Subredpient Contracts $75,481

Total Direct Costs $374,001

Total Indirect Costs $48,499

TOTAL $422,500

tt

1/5/2023

Page 1 of 1'
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccretar>' of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC

HEALTH, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 21, 2005. 1

further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretar)' of Stale's ofllce have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID; 534847

Certificate Number: 0005775671

AOb

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afilxed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this I Ith day of May A.D. 2022.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY
%

1. Trish Stafford hereby certify that;
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer as board President of Partnership For Public Health. Inc..
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _October 22. 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Tamera Carmichael, Executive Director (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corp^ion in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: I
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Trish Stafford

Title: Board of Directors President

Rev. 03/24/20



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7E885429-17D7-4DE5-A3CA.5C96C13E449C

/iOORJcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

12/27/2022

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

pROouceR

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 Meadov^rook Lane

P 0 Box 7425

Gilford NH 03247-7425

NAME*^^ EieanorSpinazzoia-
(SOS)293-2791 (603)293-7188

a'ddresS' Eleanorspinazzoia@esinsurance.nei
INSURER(S| AFFORDING COVERAGE NAlCf

INSURER A: Technoiofly Insurance Co 42376

INSURED

Partnership for Public Health, inc-

67 Water Street, Suite 105

Laconia NH 03246

INSURERS: Wesco Insurance Co 25011

INSURER c • Insuance Co 29459

INSURER D • States Fire insurance Co.,
INSURER E :

INSURERF:

THIS iS TO CERTiFY THAT THE POLiCIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WiTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLiCIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES- LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE

OTDC
INSD wvo POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EFF
(MM/DD/YYYYl

POLICY EXP
(MM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS

A

X COMMERCIAL GEfERAL LIABILITY

E  |.X| OCCUR .

TPP1721339 03/10/2022 03/10/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
5 1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAD

BAMACE TO RENTEC
PRFMISFS (Fa orciirrencel

5 1,000,000

MEO EXP (Any one oarson)
j 10,000

PERSONAL 4 AOV INJURY
J 1,000,000

GENT. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERALAGGREGATE
5 3,000,000

POLICY 1 1 JE^ 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OPAGG
5 3.000,000

Professional Liabllity- S 1,000,000

A

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

TPP1721339 03/10/2022 03/10/2023

GGMBIHEOGINGLE LIMIT
(Ea scckJam)

s

ANY AUTO

HEDULED

rros
N-OWNED
ITOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Par person) s

OWNED

ALITOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

SC BODILY INJURY (Per eccldeni) s

NC PROPERTY DAMAGE
(Per errirtenH

s

s

B

X UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE
WUM1956060 03/10/2022 03/10/2023

EACH OCCURRENCE
5 1,000.000

AGGREGATE
5 1,000.000

DEO X RETENTION S 10,000 s

C

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'LIABILITY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE rfn
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
If yas. daadbe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS brtow •

N/A 04WECRJ0009 01/01/2023 oi/01/2024

w PER OTH-
^ RTATUTF ER

E.L-EACH ACCIDENT S 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE
5 1,000,000

E.L. DISEASE • POLICY LIMIT
5 1,000,000

D
Accident/Health

US1577905 03/10/2022 03/10/2023

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlllonal Ramarks SchwJuU, may ba attachad If more ipaeais raqulrad)

State of NH Department of Health and Human Services

129 Pleasant Street

Concord NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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Public Health

Mission Statement

To improve the health and well being of the region
through Inter-organlzatlonal collaboration and
community and public health Improvement

activities
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Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for

Public Health, Inc.

Financial Statements

With Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

June 30, 2021 and 2020

and

Independent Auditor's Report

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit

of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance

With Government Auditing Standards

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Required by the Uniform Guidance

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2021 and 2020
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^VACHON Clukay CERTinCD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

~ ^ T>/^ 608 Chcsiiuii Sirect • Manchesu-r, New Hampshire 03104
C-OMPANY rL. (603) 622-7070 • l-a.x: 1603) 622-1452 » wwxv.vachonclukay.cevm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,
and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's ResponsihiHty for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Anierica; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmeni Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers, internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Partnership for Public Health, inc. as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
3,2022 on our consideration ofPartiiership for.Public Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral pan of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 3, 2022
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash $  278,600 $  304,433

Cash, restricted 468,763 1,127,389

Contributions receivable 435,693 247,731

Prepaid expenses 18.468 15,624

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,201,524 1,695,177

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Leasehold improvements 4,561 4,561

Furniture and equipment 14,510 14,510

19,071 19,071

Less accumulated depreciation (18,465) (18.103)

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 606 968

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments 52,268 105,223

Investments, restricted -
180,584

Investment in LLC .700 968

Deposit 2,981 2,981

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS 55,949 289,756

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1.258,079 $ 1,985,901

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued other expenses

Refundable advances from grantors
Refundable advance from grantor - SBA
Fiduciar>' funds
Current portion of SBA note payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES;

SBA note payable, less current portion
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

$  160,626 $  273,293

45,598 47,122

40,035 34,340

54,458 35,368

180.888 81 1,569

159,170

2,120 2,120

57,030 • 95,085

699,925 1,298,897

121,115

121,115

699,925 1,420,012

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions
TOTAL NET ASSETS

431,525

126,629

•558,154

368,222

197,667

565,889

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1,258,079 $ 1,985,901

See notes tofinancial statements
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statements of Activities

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

Contributions

In-kind support
Federal funds

State funds

Private grants and awards
Special events

Agent fees
Miscellaneous income /

Interest income

Net assets released from donor restrictions

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:

Program services
Supporting services:
Management and general
Fundraising and development

Total supporting services

TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions

Federal funds

Private grants and awards
• Special events
Net assets released from donor restrictions

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

. NET ASSETS, JULY 1

NET ASSETS, JUNE 30

2021 2020

9,839 $  11,461

86,007 50,345

1,520,020 2,140,533

840,502 ,  1,859,836
114,467 42,086

1,069 1,871

141,195 143,025

900 856

6,647 34,876

125.072 88,970

2,845.718 4,373,859

2,543,330 4,108,596

235,187 239,670

3,898 8,727

239,085 248,397

2,782,415 4,356,993

63,303 16,866

31,534 1,355

- 110,904

20,500 80,500

2,000 -

(125,072) (88,970)

(71,038) 103,789

(7,735) 120,655

565,889 445,234

:  558,154 $  565,889

See notes to financial statements
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Program

Services

718,503

79,116
57,394

855,013

SuoDorting Services

Management

and

General Fundraisine

199,600

9,072

16,125

3,598

278

224,797 3,876

Total

Supporting

Services

£  203,198

9,072

16,403

228,673

Total

Expenses

921,701

88,188

73,797

1,083,686

OTHER EXPENSES;

Contract services

Contract and grant subcontractors

Insurance

Fundraising

Occupancy

Operations

Supplies

Travel and meetings

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total

89,714

1,308,184

12,593

40

65,779

V  58,382

136,763

22,081

4,831

362

$ 2,543,330 $ 235,187 $ 3,898 S 239,085 $ 2,782,415

88,811

1,308,109

10,567
40

64,906

57,439

135,722

.  21,559

1,164

903

75

2,026

873

927

1,041

522

3,661

362

903

75

2,026

873

943

1,041

522

3,667
362

See notes tofinancial statements
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2020

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

Program

Services

758,527

84,197

56.681

899.405

Supporting Services

Management

and

General Fiindrai

194,131

8,754

13,590

216.475

sing

;  8,171

548
8,719

Total

Supporting

Services

E  202,302

8,754

14.138

225,194

Total

Expenses

960,829

92,951

70,819

1,124,599

OTHER EXPENSES:

Contract services

Contract and grant subcontractors

Discretionary funds

Insurance

Occupancy

Operations

Supplies

Travel and meetings

Miscellaneous

Depreciation

Total

59,894

2,905,886

3,542

8,227

58,512

55,347

46,237

71,361

185

1,925

3.680

2,425

1,1 19

450

1,776

1,458

362

1,925 71,819

2,905,886

3,542

11,907

60,937

56,466

46,687

73,137

1,651

362

S 4,108,596 $ 239,670 $ 8,727 $ 248,397 $ 4.356.993

3,680

2,425

1,119

450

1,776

1,466
362

See notes tofinancial statements
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES;

Change in net assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to
to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:
Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities:
Contracts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Accrued compensated absences

Accrued other expenses

Refundable advances from contractors

Fiduciary pass-through

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

$  (7,735) $ 120,655

362 362

(187,962) (37,492)

(2,844) (4,456)
(112,667) (87,1 10)

(1,524) 5,589

5,695 3,577

19,090 15,228

(630,681) (2,169,447)

^  ('.'33)
(918,266) (2,154,227)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from investments

Purchase of investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

235,958
(2,151)

233,807

129,310

(6,861)

122,449

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from note payable

Net Cash Provided for Financing Activities

216,200

216,200

Net Decrease in Cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, ending of year

(684,459)

1,431,822

(1,815,578)

3,247,400

$  747,363 $ 1,431,822

Supplemental Disclosures:

Reclassification of SBA note payable to refundable advance - $159,170

In-kind donations received

In-kind expenses

86,007

(86,007)

50.345

(50,345)

See notes to financial statements
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

Partnership for Public Health, Inc., formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.,
(the Entity) was organized on May 21, 2005 to improve the health and well-being of the Lakes Region
through inter-organizational collaboration and community and public health improvement activities.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Entity conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities, except as indicated hereafter. The following is a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report infonnation regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. These net assets may be used at the discretion of management and
the Entity's Board of Directors.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those t^t will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions arc perpetual in nature.
Where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with,donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions arc rcclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.



DocuSign Envelope ID; 7E885429-17D7-4DE5-A3CA-5C96C13E449C

PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Revenues from program services are recorded when earned. Other miscellaneous revenues arc recorded
upon receipt.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2021 2020

As presented on the Statements of Financial Position-

Cash $ 278,600 $ 304,433

Cash, restricted 468,763 1,127,389

$  747,363 $ 1,431,822

Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments consist of advanced funding received from the State of New Flampshire
for the Integrated Delivery Network (I ON), donor restricted contributions and fiduciary funds.

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of a certificate of deposit with a terni of 5 months, is carried at
their approximate market value at June 30, 2021.

Property and Eiptipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for equipment
and major improvements and to charge to operations currently for expenditures which do not extend the
lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method at
rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Years

Leasehold improvements 10-15
Furniture and equipment 5-15

Depreciation expense was $362 for both the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

Compensated Absences

Employees of the Entity working full-time, and part-time employees working at least 20 hours per week,
are entitled to paid time off (PTO). PTO is earned from the first day of work. A maximum of 160 hours
can be earned based on years of service, while 80 hours can be carried over and accumulated to the next
year. Accumulated PTO is payable upon termination of employment with proper notice. The Entity
accrues accumulated PTO wages accordingly. During fiscal year 2020, due to the pandemic, employees
were allowed to carry over an additional 40 hours of accrued PTO. During fiscal year 2021, employees
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

were allowed to carryover any hours in excess of the allowed 80 hours with the provision that the hours
had to be used by September 30, 2021.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

The Entity receives significant volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer efforts, while
critical to the success of its mission, is not reflected in the financial statements since it does not meet the
criteria necessary for recognition according to generally accepted accounting principles. Donated
facilities, supplies, equipment and staff support are recorded as 'Mn-kind" contributions if the services (a)
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills, are perfonned by people with those
skills, and would otherwise be purchased by the Entity. Donated goods and professional sers'ices are
recorded as both revenues and expenses at estimated fair value, see Note 11 for additional information.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited, based primarily on percentage allocations calculated based
on hours worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include salaries, payroll taxes,
employee benefits, office supplies, fundraising, operations, and insurance, which are all allocated on the
basis of time and effort, as noted previously. In addition, there arc some indirect costs which are
allocated based on square footage or as a percentage of total expenses.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. No allowance has been recorded as of
June 30, 2021 and 2020, because management of the Entity believes that all outstanding receivables are
fully collectible.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and miscellaneous revenue when cash is received.
Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable perfonnance or other barrier and a right of
return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they depend have been met.

The Entity also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal grants, which are conditional upon
certain perfonnance requirements and/or incurrent of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received
are recognized as revenue without donor restrictions when the Entity has met those perfonnance
requirements or incurred expenditures in compliance with the specific grant provisions. Amounts
received prior to meeting performance requirements or incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as
revenue with donor restrictions and amounts not yet received, but already awarded are recorded as grants
receivable.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates;

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income-taxes. In addition, the Entity has been detemiined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2021 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, investments, contracts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are
carried in the financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-,
term nature of the transactions. The fair values detennined for financial instruments are estimates, which
for certain accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate
liquidation.

Change in Accounting Principle

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued new guidance that created Topic 606, Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, in the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC). Topic 606 supersedes
the revenue recognition requirements in. FASB ASC 605, Revenue Recognition, and requires the
recognition of revenue when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount that
reficcts the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The new guidance also added Subtopic 340-40, Other Assets and Deferred Costs-Contracts with
Customers, to the ASC to require the deferral of incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer. Collectively, we refer to the new Topic 606 and Subtopic 340-40 as the "new guidance."

The Entity adopted the requirements of the new guidance as of July 1, 2020, utilizing the modified
retrospective method of transition. The new guidance was applied using the practical expedient provided
in Topic 606 that allows the guidance to be applied only to contracts that were not complete as of July 1,
2020. Adoption of the new guidance resulted in changes to our accounting policies for revenue
recognition, trade receivables, contract costs, contract liabilities, and deferred costs. However,
management estimates that the effect of these changes on the amounts that would have been reported
under the forrher guidance to be immaterial. Management has evaluated the impact of the application of
this standard and detemiined any applicability to the Entity is not material.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

NOTE 2—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested in certificates of
deposit to maximize investment return while maintaining safety and liquidity.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, reduced by
amounts that arc not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of fmaneial
position date because of donor restrictions.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the balance sheet date, comprise the following;

2021 2020

Cash '$ 747,363 $ 1,431,822

Investments 52,268 285,807

Contributions receivable 435,693 247,731

Total Financial Assets 1,235,324 1,965,360

Less:

Obligations from grantor restricted funds (162,776) (296,618)

Net assets with donor restrictions (126,629) (197,667)

Refundable advances from grantors (180,888) (811,569)

Fiduciary funds (2,120) (2,120)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs,

for General Expenditures Within One Year $  762,91 1 $  657,386

In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the Entity also could draw upon $125,000 of its available
line of credit, as further discussed in Note 6.

NOTE 3—CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The Entity's
demand deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of
$250,000. As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, all of the Entity's bank deposits were fully insured.

note 4—investment in LLC

In January 2016, the Entity became a member of a newly established limited liability corporation.
Community Health Services Network, LLC ("CHSN"), to support the enhancement of behavioral health
services integration in the region. The Entity will provide financial and administrative services to CHSN.

NOTE 5—REFUNDABLE ADVANCES FROM GRANTORS

Refundable advances from grantors of $ 180,888 and $81 1,569 as of June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
represents unearned grant revenue on contributions from various funding agencies.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Refundable advances from grantors — SBA of $ 159,170 as of June 30, 2021 represents the portion of the
SBA note payable to be forgiven in fiscal year 2022. See Note 7.

NOTE fr—LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has a $125,000 line of credit with a local financial institution. The interest rate for the credit
line was 5.25% at June 30, 2021 and 2020. The interest rate is based on the Wall Street Journal Prime
Rate as published in the Wall Street Journal. At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the balance on the line of credit
was $0.

NOTE 7—SBA NOTE PAYABLE

At June 30, 2021 and 2020, the SBA note payable consists of the following:

2021 2020

$216,200 unsecured note payable, payable in 18 monthly
installments of $12,167 including interest at 1.00% beginning

November 24, 2020 through April 24, 2022. The balance of the

note is payable in full with all accrued interest on May 28, 2022. $^^7^030 $_^^^20^

The above SBA note payable is based upon an executed loan agreement that allows for principal'
forgiveness in whole or part upon satisfaction of certain criteria. Following are the maturities of the SBA
note payable as of June 30, 2021;

Year Ending

June 30. Amount

2022 ■ $ 57,030

The SBA note payable was obtained under the Payroll Protection Program. As noted abovc^ the Entity is
eligible to apply for principal forgiveness in whole or part by the Small Business Administration under
the CARES Act, once certain eligibility criteria have been satisfied. During fiscal year 2021, the Entity
applied for and in July 2021, received principal forgiveness totaling $159,170 plus interest of $2,034. For
the year ended June 30, 2021, $159,170 has been recorded as an advance from grantor and will be
recognized as revenue in the year ending June 30, 2022. The remaining note balance following
forgiveness will be due in minimum monthly payments under the repayment terms detailed above.

note 8—NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions consist of the following donor restricted funding at June 30, 2021 and
2020:

13
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020

ServiceLink $  8,707 $  7,885

Volunteer CERT 1,477 1,477

Laconia Youth Alliance 21,544

CERT 21,586 20,622

NH Charitable Foundation 34,317 39,304

DSRIP Incentive 17,783 18,114

CHSN - Public Health Officer 88,937

Other 21,215' 21,328

Total Net Assets with Donor Restrictions S  126,629 $  197,667

NOTE 9—CONCENTRATION OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Entity
recognized revenue of $2,360,522 (85.1%) and $4,000,369 (89.3%), respectively, from fees and grants
from governmental agencies. Revenue is usually recognized as earned under the tenns of the grant
contracts and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. However, in the years ended June 30, 2021 and
June 30, 2020, the Entity received $536 thousand and $1.1 million, respectively, in performance
payments on a five-year, $12.8 million governmental contract waiver to enhance behavioral health
integration in the region. This revenue is anticipated to be recognized over a five-year period through
fiscal year 2021, dependent on the receipt of State matching funds, achievement of pcrfonnance metrics
and other criteria. Other support originates from other program services, contributions, in-kind donations,
and other income.

NOTE 10—LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Entity entered into a lease for office space located in Tamworth, NH with monthly lease payments of
$1,068 through June 2021. The lease was renewed through June 30, 2022 with monthly payments at
$1,068. Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2020 were $12,689 and $12,336,
respectively.

The Entity also has two leases for office spaces in Laconia, NH. The first lease has monthly payments of
$2,147 through August 31, 2019. An updated agreement was entered into with required payments of
$2,185 through August 31, 2020. The second lease for additional office space was entered into on
June 1, 2018. Under the terms of the agreement, monthly payments will be $780 per month through May
2019. The updated agreement effective June 1, 2019 reflects payments of $795 through May 2020 and
was extended at the same terms through May 2021. Lease expense for the years ended June 30, 202Land
June 30, 2020 for these leases was $36,054 and $35,765, respectively. These agreements were amended
into one lease for the units in Laconia, NH, with payments of $3,110 through June 30, 2022.

The Entity entered into a 60 month equipment lease with monthly lease payments of $495 through
December 2021 with percentage increases in Years 2-5 for maintenance and overages of 5%-10%. Lease
expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 was $3,561.

The following is a schedule, by years, of the future minimum payments for operating leases:
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Year Ended

June 30.

2022

. 2023

2024

2025

2026

Annual

Lease Cominitnients

$  56,141 ■

6,177

6,430

6,708

3,427

$  78,883

NOTE 11—DONATED SERVICES, MATERIALS AND FACILITIES

The Entity receives various donated services, materials and facilities. For the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, there was $86,007 and $50,345, respectively, of in-kind donations recognized as revenue, in-
kind donations have been included as functional expenses in these financial statements as follows:

Supplies

Contract services

Travel and meetings

Operations

Contract and grant subcontractors

2021

S  41,563

10,950

33,494

S  86,007

2020

S  1,983

33,460

1,500

10,950

2,452

$  50,345

NOTE 12—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be detennined at this time, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 13—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In July 2021, the Entity received notification of the forgiveness of $ 159,170 of their Paycheck Protection
Program loan from the SBA.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 3, 2022 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

NOTE 14—COVID IMPACT

Coronavirus disease 19 ('•COVID-19") is a respiratory disease caused by the new coronavirus (SARS-
CoV-2) not previously seen in humans. An outbreak'of COVID-19 began in late 2019 in Wuhan, a city in
China's Hubei province. To date, cases of C0V1DI9 have spread around the world. In February 2020, the
United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention confirmed the spread of the disease to the
United States, and in March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak a pandemic and
the Trump Administration declared it a national emergency in the United States.
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

FORMERLY KNOWN AS LAKES REGION PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

The Entity has and expects to continue to experience some effect in operations as a result of the COVID-
19 pandemic, primarily in response to directives from government funding sources and officials in an
attempt to quell the spread of the disease. The agency strategizcd and leveraged operating funds to outfit
staff with needed technology as well as transition operating systems to allow remote work and tele-
appointments to ensure the safety of staff and clients served in vulnerable populations.

The Entity accessed several funding sources related to pandemic support and relief such as the CARES
Act, SBA Payroll Protection Program, FEMA, as well as other funding sources. These funds were
utilized to support' public safety expenditures in response to the pandemic as well as lost revenue
attributable to COViD-19. Funds allowed the organization to bolster its emergency preparedness and
response department to provide the community with PPE and education regarding precautions initially
and then to administer and support other organizations in administration of vaccinations to eligible
populations in the eommunity. The response has been implemented with only two full time staff and
mobilizing a cadre of volunteers increasing in-kind contributions significantly.

N

The Entity assessed expenditures to position the organization to utilize new equipment, technology, and
systems as new standards of care as well as to assure preparation for any future emergency response.

NOTE 15—FUTURE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

FASB has issued ASU 2016-02, Lease ffopic 842). which the Entity is required to implement for the year
ending June 30, 2022. Management believes that this update will have a potentially significant impact on
the financial statements. The Entity will be required to recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability
for transactions currently identified as operating leases.
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SCHEDULE I

PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, ENC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For ihc Year Ended June 30, 2021

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
State Agency/Grant Program/Stale
Grant Number ^

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Pass Through Payments from the County of Bclknap, New Hampshire
CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster:

Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants
Total CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster

Assistance

Listing
Number

14.218

Total

Federal

Expenditures

773

773

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development 773

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Governor's
Office for Emergency Relief and Recovery
COVID 19 - Coronavims Relief Fund

Total Department of the Treasury

21.019 45,024

45,024

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass Through Payments from the National Association of County
and City Health Officials
Medical Reserve Corps Small Grant Program

#HITEP2000045-01-01

93.008

378

Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Special Programs for the Aging, Title IV, and Title II, Discretionary Projects
#90MP0176-03-01

93.048

17,839

Pass Through Payments from University of New Hampshire
Special Programs for the Aging, Title IV, and Title II, Discretionary Projects
#HHS-20l8-ACL-CiP-NWBC-0285

COVID I9-#C0VIDBEAS-ADRC

93.048

24,065

30,336

72,240

Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

National Family Caregivcr Support, Title III, Part.E
#200l-NHOAFC-02

93.052

72,090

Public Health Emergency Preparedness
#NU90TP922018

93.069

59,175

Environmental Public Health and Emergency Response

#NUEIEHOOI357

93.070.

6,407

Medicare Enrollment Assistance Program

#200INHMlSH-00

93.071

8.037

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures offederal cnvards
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SCHEDULE I

PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.

Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

Federal Granting Agency/Recipient
Slate Agency/Grant Program/Slate
Grant Number

Childhood Lead Poisoning Prevention Projects, State and Local Childhood
Lead Poisoning Prevention and Surveillance of Blood Lead Levels in Children
#NUE2EH001408

Assistance

Listing
Number

93.197

Total

Federal

Expenditures

4,271

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Sers'ices Projects of Regional
and National Significance

#SP020796

Immunization Cooperative Agreements

#NH23IP922595

C0V1D.19 - #NH23IP922595

93.243

93.268

89.662

15,651

12.506

28,157

Received Directly from the U.S. Department of Treasury
Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants
#NH28CE003102

93.276

52,124

Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

State Health Insurance Assistance Program

COVID i9-#90SA0003-02-03

93.324

25.881

Public Health Emergency Response; Cooperative Agreement for Emergency
Response: Public Health Crisis Response
#NU90TP922i06

Social Services Block Grant

#2021-DLTSS-08-SERVI-05

National Biolcrrorism Hospital Prepardness Program
#U3REPI90580

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse

#TI08304I

Total Department of Health and Human Services

DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidcntally Declared Disasters)
COVID 19-BEAS

COVID 19-FEMA #45I6DRNHP00000001

93.354

93.667

93.889

93.959

97,036

43,190

132.386

10,000

11 1,054

715,052

5,006

168,757

173,763

Total Department of Homeland Sccuritj

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

173,763

$  934,612

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards
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PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH, INC.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2021

NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the '"Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. under programs of the federal government for the
year ended June 30, 2021, The infonnation in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Unifonn Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Partnership for Public Health,
Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Partnership for Public Health, inc.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which is described in
Note I to Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized
following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

Partnership for Public Health, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-pcrccnt dc minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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^VACHON Clukay CCRTir/CD PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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Cst COMPANY r C C603) 622-7070 • l-ax: 1603) 622-1452 • www.vaclionclokay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

Partnership for Public Health, inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Publie Health, ine.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of Ameriea and the standards applieable to financial audits contained in Governmenl Aiidiiing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United Stales, the finaneial statements of Partnership for Public
Health, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 3, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Partnership for
Public Health, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the cireumstanccs for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
finaneial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effeetivencss of Partnership
for Public Health, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of Partnership for Publie Health, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in inlerndl control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees^ in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatcmenis on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

I
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entit>''s
intemal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 3, 2022
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direet and material cffeet on
each of Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.
Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the.summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsihility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsihility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on eompliance for each of Partnership for Publie Health,
Inc.'s major federal programs based on our audit of the types of eomplianee requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in aecordanee with auditing standards generally aecepted in the
United States of Ameriea; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Unifonn Guidance
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noneomplianee
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Partnership
for Public Health, Inc.'s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for bur opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Partnership for Publie
Health, Inc.'s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

in our opinion, Partnership for Public Health, inc. complied, in ail material respects, with the types
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Partnership for Public Health, Inc. is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect
on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and
to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, wc do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Partnership for Public Health, Inc.'s
internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance docs not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfomiing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliancc with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncomplianee with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of eomplianee requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and, the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Unifonn Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire

March 3, 2022
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Partnership for Public Health, Inc.
Formerly known as Lakes Region Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended June 30,2021

Section 1--Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in aecordanee with GAAP:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(cs) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncomplianee material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified

X  noyes

yes. X none reported

yes X no

Federal A wards

Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(cs) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with
2 CFR 200.516(a)?

_ yes X no

_ yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X  no

Identification of major federal program(s):

Assistance Listing Numbcr(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.667 Social Services Block Grant

93.959
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance

Abuse

97.036
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance (Presidentially Declared

Disasters)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: S 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X  no
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Section Il-Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section Ill-Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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D Q

Board Members January 2023

BoD Matrix 2018-2028 C ity/Tow n-Li ve-w ork

1. Irish Stafford. President Town Manaqer - Sanbomton

2. Lisa Dupuls, CEO, Central NH VNA and Hospice

3. Brian Lamontaqne, VP & Treas FSB Branch Manaqer. Gilford

4. Sarah Stanley NH Veteran's Home, Public Information Officer

5. Lisa Garcia Reqistered Dietitian • business owner

6. Michelle Lennon CRSW, Executive Director - Greater Tilton Family

7. Maraaret Franckhauser. Exec Co MS, MPH. RN; JSI Director of Aqinq Services

8. Jason Bean. Secretary Deputy Chief, EMS Laconla Fire Department I

9. Carolyn Muiler CCP Community Health Improvement Specialist, (

10. Mark Waldner Attorney, Wescott Law, P.A.

11. Jessica Morton Health Communications Specialist ® DHHS
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Tamera S. Carmichael
JIHH

SUMMARY

A Proven program administrator with 29 years of experience developing effective social support
programs. Secured over $l .4 million in program funding to improve the social determinants of health for
underserved families and individuals. Served on over 15 boards and coalitions to establish inter-
organizational partnerships and foster community collaboration. Supervised 5 diverse programs with 25
team members to create and implement holistic public policies.

EDUCATION

University of South Florida Tampa, FL
Bachelor of Arts in Sociology 1

Saint Petersburg College Clearwatcr, FL
Associate of Arts Degree 1^^^

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Partnership for Public Health Inc. Laconia, NH
Executive Director 2020 - Present

^ Strategic planning; grants/contracts; community relations; and resource development leadership
Fiscal Oversight for organization's budget exceeding $3 million

^ Effective management and development more than 20 diverse employees, interns, and volunteers

^ Administration of Regional Public Health Network: CHIP/CHA development and implementation

State of Florida Department of Health Gainesville, FL
Program Development Administrator 2008 — 2020

^ Responsible for development and management of 5 public health programs whose budgets exceed $2 million
Establish and monitor contracts for North Central Florida Health Department Consortium

Effective management and development of 25 diverse employees, interns, and volunteers

^ Over 8 years member of CHTP/CHA Steering Committee and Performance Management Council

Bay Area Bail Bonds & Investigations, Inc. Cleanvaler, FL
Owner/Operator 2001—2008

Qualified and wrote more than $2 million monthly in commercial bail indemnities

^ Managed 9 employees.of diverse backgrounds as well as payroll, accounts receivable, and accounts payable
^ Served as Secretary of the Pinellas County Bail Bond Association

Used investigation techniques and critical analytical skills to locate and retrieve delinquent sureties

Mease Manor Inc. Dunedin, FL
Social Services Director 1998 — 2001

^ Monitored compliance and documentation per State and Federal Regulations in a long-term care facility
^ Established interdepartmental plans of care for residents and supervised multiple employees of diverse

backgrounds and responsibilities

^ Inaugural winner of the Florida Healthcare Association's Social Service Worker of the Year award
^ Established family/caregiver support group
^ Collaborated with community services to provide quality care and ensure psychosocial well-being of residents

and responsible parties
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SuDCoast Hospital Largo, FL
Patient Service Coordinator I 1993 — 1995

Monitored compliance and documentation per State and Federal Regulations in a skilled nursing and acute
care facilities

^ Provided individualized discharge planning and interdepartmental coordination for patients

^ On-call rotation as Patient Service Coordinator for all hospital departments (surgery, Maternity, ICU, etc.)

Family Resources, Inc. St. Petersburg, FL
Youth Care Worker III 1990 - 1993

^ Care and Supervision of children 9-18 years old in a crisis/runaway shelter, phone crisis counsel

Supervised staff and volunteers, recruited and trained volunteers, marketing and fiind raising

Interfaced with law enforcement, child protective services, and victims' advocates

Supervised visits with parents and children

Completed necessary documentation for a non-profit organization per guidelines

LICENSURE AND

CERTIFICATIONS

State of New Hampshire Notary Public
Florida Certified Contract Manager

State Certified Contract Administrator

SKILLS

Soft: Program Development, Employee Recruitment and Empowerment, Community Collaboration, Effective
Communication, Public Speaking, Strategic Planning, and Quality Improvement, Leadership
Hard: Microsoft Office Suite, Proprietary Software, Database Management, IS200.b FEMA Emergency
Management, Financial Management, Regulatory Compliance, Contract Administration, and Grant Writing
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CARISSA ELPHICK

EDUCATION

University ofNew Hampshire, Durham, New Hampshire September 2013
Master of Arts Degree in Justice Studies, (Graduating CPA: 3.92)

Saint Joseph's College of Maine, Standish, Maine May 2011
Bachelor of Arts Degree In Psychology with Summa Cum Laude Honors (Graduating CPA: 3.90)

EXPERIENCE

Partnership for Public Health, Laconia, NH
Director, Human Service Programs May 2017- Present

e  Responsible for all deliverables associated with ServiceLink Resource Center program, a contract of Bureau of
Elderly and Adult Services to include Options Counseling, NH Family Caregiver Program, State Health Insurance
Assistance Program, and Veteran-Directed Program. Oversight of two locations in both Belknap and Carroll
County;

•  Direct supervision of seven employees to include designing and facilitating professional development plans;
•  Participated in the development of agency strategic plan and serve as agency lead of all activities related to

healthy aging on both a local and statewide level;
•  Member of the WInnipesaukee Public Health Council and Carroll County Coalition for Public Health and facilitate a

regional collaborative of stakeholders responsible for the goals and objectives in the Community Health
Improvement Plan relating to healthy aging;

•  Facilitate regional NH CarePath meeting, a statewide and regional partnership dedicated to coordinated access for
long term supports and services;

•  Effective leader and team member willing to stray from the norm to find creative solutions for best outcomes.
•  Advocate coalition building and breaking down silos to move partners closer to an integrated model of care.
•  Assist with agency strategic marketing, communication, sustalnability, and development plans to include grant

writing.

Community Health Services Network LLC, Laconia, NH
Executive Director August 2020 • Present

•  Direct an Integrated Delivery Network (IDN) comprised of 31 healthcare and social service agencies via a
Medicaid 1115 waiver providing innovative programs and strategies to transform the delivery of care and
improve health outcomes for participants feced with mental health and/or substance use disorders.

•  Serve as the face of our IDN for all State, County or media activities. Serve as the communications hub and liaison
for partners while working closely with organizational leadership, board of directors, network partners and staff
to strategically move and affect project outcomes.

• Manage and direct all fiscal operations, including budget oversight, authorizing expenditures, reimbursements,
grant tracking, accounting and coordinating financial reporting.

•  Provide oversight of six project workgroups by providing leadership, guidance and technical assistance needed to
support teams in meeting project deadlines and goals. Workgroups include HIT, Integrated Health, Workforce,
Supportive Community Re-Entry, Expansion in Intensive Outpatient Treatment and Enhanced Care Coordination
for High Needs Population. Each project has a specific focus of integrating one's behavioral health needs within
their primary care, identifying the social determinants of health and connecting to appropriate social services.

Long Term Support CounscIor/Care Transitions Specialist December 2014 - May 2017
•  Perform person- centered options counseling to connect individuals to long term supports and services;
•  Screen for eligibility and assist consumers with applications for assistance for state benefits, housing, other

community resources;
•  Certified State Health Insurance Assistance Program (SHIP) Counselor assisting clients with Medicare related

questions and enrollments In cost-saving programs to include assisting low-income Individuals and those living in.
rural locations;

•  Assistance with discharge planning and provide follow-up after discharge for high risk patients at Lakes Region
General Hospital in order to reduce readmission rates;

•  Created and facilitate community wrap-around team consisting of mental health, law enforcement, fire/EMS,
healthcare, and social services.
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CARISSAELPHICK

Merrimack County Advocacy Center, Concord, New Hampshire
Program Assistant/Forensic Interviewer May 2013-November 2014

•  Coordinate a multidisciplinary team of 29 law enforcement agencies, child protective service workers, crisis
center advocates, prosecutors, mental health professionals, and medical professionals to include facilitating team
meetings and case review;

•  Coordinate, schedule, and conduct forensic interviews of victims of child abuse and adult sexual assault;
•  Creation, coordination, and implementation of outreach and prevention projects;
•  Assist in agency sustainability through fundraising and community relationship building.

State ofNew Hampshire Judicial Branch, Franklin, New Hampshire
Court Assistant 11 January 2012-JuIy 2012

•  Daily docketing of incoming law enforcement complaints and judicial mail;
•  Scheduling hearings and case management on all adoptions, name changes, minor guardianships, and

trusts

OTHER NOTABLE EXPERIENCE

Advisory Council Member, Tri-State Learning Collaborative on Aging February 2021
Founding Member, Gilford Neighbors January 2021
Ambassador Charting the Life Course
Home and Community Based Services Conference August 26,2019
Presenter

Founding Board Member, Huggins' Hospital Rural Health Network November 2018
ALS Association ofNorthern New England Annual Conference November 2018
Presenter

Leadership Lakes Region Class of 2017
State Health Insurance Assistance Program - Program Specialist Certification 2016
NH Public Health Association November 15,2016
Presenter

Person-Centered Thinking and Options Counseling Certifications September 2016
CertifiedResourceSpecialistfor Aging/Disability (CIRSA/D) May 2015
Forensic Interviewer Training
National Children's Alliance February 2014
Team Facilitator Training
Presented by Northeast Regional Children's Advocacy Center November 2013
Forensic Interviewer Training
Presented by Granite State Children's Alliance 2013
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Courtney DeVost

Objective

Hard working business administration graduate with proven human resources and organizational
leadership skills. I am seeking a long-term partnership with a business that will increase my personal
growth while simultaneously aiding in the advancement and longevity of the company.

Education

MASTER'S I MAY 2023 | PLYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY
Pursuing: Master's in Business Administration

BACHELOR S | SEPTEMBER 20211 SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY
Major: Business Administration

ASSOCIATE'S I MAY 2018 | NEW HAMPSHIRE TECHNICAL INSTITUTE
Major: Business Administration

Skills & Abilities

CORE COMPETENCIES

EXCELENT TIME-MANAGEMENT SKILLS

DETAIL-ORIENTED AND ORGANIZED

VERBAL AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATION

DEDICATED TEAM MEMBER

ADEPT IN TECHNOLOGY

MS OFFICE PROFICIENT: 70 WPM

NOTARY OF PUBLIC, STATE OF NH

SKILLS

FINANCE

o  In-depth financial understanding and well experienced in accounting, financial statements,
invoicing, billing, federal and state compliance, as well as handling cash flow and all
reporting.

o  Assisting and aiding in any and all functions and tasks requested of the Finance Director.
Human Resources

o With overly competent communication skills with employees, management, and directors;
adaptability to all situations that arise, upmost confidentiality in all situations necessary
and able to determine when confidentiality is required.

o  Assisting and coordinating events, employee training, and any technical training of new
systems.
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Certifications & Involvement

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGEMENT CERTIFICATE | APRIL 2022 | UNIVERSITY OF NH
Certification requiring 6 core courses that range from 4-8 hours long, and satisfactory involvement met.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS I SEPTEMBER 20211 TAPPLY-THOMPSON COMMUNITY CENTER
Involvement with voting rights. Deciding party of the Finance Committee and Policy Committee.

HEAD COACH 1 OCTOBER 2015 | NEWFOUND MEMORIAL MIDDLE SCHOOL
Head coach of the Newfound Memorial Middle School girls' basketball team.

Experience

HR & OPERATIONS MANAGER | PARTNERSHIP FOR PUBLIC HEALTH | DECEMBER 2021 -
PRESENT

FINANCE & COMPLIANCE SPECIALIST | SEPTEMBER 2020 - DECEMBER 2021
•  Follow all necessary business policies and accounting practices: seek to improve/update the finance

department's overall internal control policy and procedure manual.
■  Provides coordination and administrative support at coalition meetings, events, activities, and trainings
as assigned and needed.

•  Produce and maintain all necessary data, records, and reports as necessitated by funder(s).
■  Complete all reporting requirements fully, accurately, and in a timely manner as specified.
■  Assists with all human resource functions, including organizing New Hire personnel files, processing

background checks, implementing and tracking employee benefits, retirement plans, insurance, and
personnel-related activities.

•  Perform other related duties as directed within the finance, operations, and HR functions.

■  Provide training and educational information regarding any and all HR changes and necessary
advancements.

•  Process biweekly payroll, benefits, and employee reimbursements timely and accurately.
•  Ensure proper backup and retention of account records and files.
•  Pi ovide technical assistance to staff with payi'oll. Excel, other software and hai dware.

•  Assist with all necessary and requested tasks of the Finance Director, as well as related duties as
directed by the Executive Director, including but not limited to finance and HR functions of the
organization.

• Maintain all finance, business contracts, and reporting.

•  Assist in maintaining and coordinating all opei'ational events within the organization.
•  Aiding in process and form creation with the organizational leadership.

LEASING ADMINISTRATIVE SPECIALIST | FORT BLISS FAMILY HOMES | JUNE 2018 -
MARCH 2019

• Maintain calendars for the leasing team.

•  Draft and complete contracts regularly.

■  Assist in telecommunications to prospective residents and assist with assignments of available homes.
•  Serve as a point of contact between residents and the community.

Page 2
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• Assisted management directly with marketing and communications.

•  Regular data entry and configuration.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT | COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICES NETWORK J APRIL 2017 -
MAY 2018

■  Attend and take minutes at all Board and Finance meetings as well as various project meetings.

•  Draft and proofread letters, emails and documents as welUs design spreadsheets, invitations and
business materials when needed.

•  Create and proofread reports for the Executive Director and other superiors to reflect previous
implementation and progress.

• Assist with review and submission of payments and reimbursements through Community Health
Services Network.

• Assist with human resource duties such as reviewing resumes, drafting emails for interviews, setting

up appointment times and assisting in the interview and hiring processes.
•  Coordinate and complete preparation of monthly, quarterly and annual meetings.

•  Assist with daily operations within the Community Health Services Network office.

Public Service

BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S MEMBERSHIP | TAPPLY-THOMPSON COMMUNITY
CENTER I SEPTEMBER 2021 - PRESENT
"• Working directly with the Executive Committee and other members to make well executed judgments

regarding the organization and any of its key decisions. While on this board, I am also apart of the
following committees:

o Finance Committee

o Policy Committee

Page 3
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Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary Amount Paid
from this Contract

Tamera Carmichael Executive Director S4,600.00

Carissa Elphick Director of Human Service

Programs

$12,000.00

Courtney DeVost . Director of Operations and
Finance

$3,900.00
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LoH A-ShlUMtte

Commbiloeer

MelliM K. Hardjr
Dlrctlor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AW HUMAN SERVICES

DIVlSfONOFlONG TERM SUPPORTS AND SERFICES

105 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-5034 l.«00-852-3345 Est 5034

Fat: 603-271-5166 TDD Ae^: 1-800-735-2964
www.dhbi.Dh.gov

May 23, 2022

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Long Term Supports
and Services, to enter into a contract with Partnership for Public Health. Inc. (VC#165635),
Laconia. NH. in the amount of $320,000 to reduce social Isolation in order to prevent mental,
emotional and physical decline for individuals 60 years of age and older, who identify as home-
based, or who are otherwise socially Isolated, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional
years, effective July 1, 2022, or upon Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through
June 30, 2024. 80% Federal Funds. 20% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounts for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line Items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-48-481010-2638 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS,

HHS: ELDERLY AND ADULT SERVICES, GRANTS TO LOCALS, GENERAL FUND MATCH
FOR ARPA (ARPA GRANTS)

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2023 570-500928 Family Careglver (TIIIE) 48130623 $160,000

2024 540-500382
Social Sen/Ice

Contracts (THIS)
48130619

$160,000

Subtotal $320,000

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to reduce social isolation In order to prevent mental,
emotional and physical decline for Individuals 60 years of age and older, who identify as home-
based. or who are otherwise socially Isolated.

Approximately 500 individuals will be served during State Fiscal Years 2023 and 2024.

77m Dtporlmtni of HeaUh and Human Servicts'Minion m lojcincommunilUo and familiet
in providing cpporiunitito for cilutn$ to ochievt heotlh and indtpendenee.
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His Excenency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
erK) the Honorable Council

Pege 2 of 2

Social isolation Is one of the most common problems affecting older adults, and it has
been exacerbated by the COVID-19 pandemic. Social isolation impacts,mental, emotional and
physical well-being and may result In the loss of social resources. It is also linked to cognitive
decline, poor memory, and higher mortality rates in older adults. The Contractor will develop a
statewide program to connect older individuals experiencing social isolation with local or statewide
activities, programs and services that are focused on enharicing mental, emotional and physical
well-tieing. The Contractor will conduct a statewide needs assessment: collaborate with
community partners to develop a resource library; conduct outreach activities to the target
population and market statewide activities, programs and services.

The Department will monitor services by reviewing the monthly and quarterly reports
provided by the Contractor.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Proposals (RFP) that was posted on the Department's website from February 17.
2022 through April 5. 2022. The Department received three (3) responses that were reviewed and
scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet Is attached.

As referenced in Exhibit A. Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, Paragraph 1.2.
of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2)
additional years.; contingent upon satisfactory delivery of senrices, available funding, agreement
of the parlies, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request, individuals 60 years of age
and older, who identify as home-based, or who are otherwise socially isolated may experience
decreased mental, emotional and physical well-being which could potentially lead to cognitive
decline, poor memory, and higher mortality rates.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number#93.044, FAIN #2101NHSSC6; and
Assistance Listing Number #93.052, FA!N#2101NHFCC6

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, Gerieral Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted,

f)U

Lori Shibinette
Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement
Scoring Sheet

Project ID# RFP»2023-B£AS^S-SOC1A

Project Title isoclal Isolation Reduction Strategies

Maximum

Points.

Available Ma^dmus

Mill Creek

Counseling &

Famitv Services '

^rtnership for

^bitc Health,

nc's

40 35 33 38

Program Vaheiy and Availability
t071 45 42 35 45

Program Modalities (Q3) 25 22 21 25

Policies arxl Protocols (04) 15 14 12 15

Needs Assessment 1051 SO 48 42 50

35 33 33 33

g

 ■1
<

20 20 16 18

30 29 30 30

10 10 9 9

Subtotal - Technical 270 253 231 263

70 19 48 60

Program Staff List (Apoendbc E 30 15 20 30

Subtotal • Cost 100 34 68 90

TOTAL POINTS 370 287 299 353

Reviewer Name

I'Jeen Crouch

2 [Brian Clark

^[una Gouiet

Title

•'CommuniiY Based Program Sup, i

|polic^dminnislralor__^^^_^^_[
iManaqer Family Careglver Supports
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Subjcct;_Social Isolation Reduction Strategies (RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

l.l State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

67 Water Street, Suite # 105
Laconia, NH 03246

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 528-2145

1.6 Account Number

05-95-48-481010-2638

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2024

1.8 Price Limitation

S320,000

1 ̂ 9 Contracting OfTicer for State Agency

Nathan D. While, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature
0©«uJlpn#iJ bjr.

1 t<^Vrc. Ut^icluui °^"5/27/2022

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Tamera carmichael executive oii

1.13 State Agency Signature
<>~0oeu5lon*d frjr:

I  °^"'6/l/2022

1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory •

Christine Santaniellc Associate Cor

1.15 Approval by thcN.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By; Director, On;

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)
I>«<g9lgn«d by:

By-| 6/1/2022
1.17 ApprovafKy ffiiTCjovcrnor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date;

Iector

trnssio

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Initials

Date

tt

■572777072
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Stale of New
Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("Stale"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement ,to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agreement, and all obligations ofthe parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive

Council approve this Agreement as indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on the date the Agreement is signed by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EITcctive Date, alt Ser\'ices performed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Dale shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not become
efTcctivc, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrar)', all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any stale or federal legislative or executive
action that reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
pan. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this.Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

event funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
arc identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference..
5.2 The payment by the Slate of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of ail payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set fonh in block 1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable, statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any part by monies ofthe United States, the Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or the United States issue to irhplement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations
and ordersj and the covenants, terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Service.^ shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Scr>'iccs to hire, any person who is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
admini.stration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall siirvivc termination of this Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be the Stale's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

Page 2 of4
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"'):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any repod required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, ihiny (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days aflcr giving the
Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and su.spending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the podion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provi.sions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any fudher or other Event of-
Default on the pad of the Contractor.

9.TERMns'ATI0N.

9.1 Notsviihstanding paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or
in pad, by thidy (30) days written notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the Slate's' discretion, deliver to the
Contracting OfTicer, not later than fiflecn (15) days after the date
of termination, a repod ("Termination Repod") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Termination Repod shall
be identical to those of any Final Rcpod described in the attached
EXHIBIT B. In addition, at the Slate's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page 3

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
preservation.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, repods,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, chads, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 Ail data and any propeny which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the propcdy of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Confdcntiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
voting shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.
12.2 None of the Scr\'iccs shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities arid costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or employees, which arise out of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omis|ritm°ftf the
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Contraclor, or subconlractors, including bul noi limited lo the
negligence, reckless or inlcnlional conduct. The Stale shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State, This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
le.ss'than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all properly
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificalc{s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfTicer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of insurance
for all rencwal(s) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the c.xpiraiion date of each
insurance policy. The certificate(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are Incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, (he Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ( "H'orkers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or ajtsignee to secure and maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proofof Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
28i-A and any applicable rencwal(s) thereof, which shall be
attached and arc incorporated herein.by reference. The State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
Inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20.'THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthc provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the. approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
Stale of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
ail obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2022 ("Effective Date").

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3! The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Dale, contingent upon satisfactoiv delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall
annually provide the State with a list of'all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.

—w
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall provide social isolation reduction strategies in this
Agreement to individuals 60 years and older, who identify as home-based,
defined as: requiring substantial effort or assistance to leave home, leaving
home briefly and/or infrequently, or leaving home only when in need of medical
care; or who are otherwise experiencing social isolation.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure services are available statewide.

1.3. For the purposes'of this Exhibit B, all references to days shall mean business
days, excluding state and federal holidays. ■

1.4. For the purposes of this Agreement, all references to business hours shall
mean Monday through Friday from 8 AM to 4 PM.

1.5. The Contractor shall develop a statewide program to connect individuals
experiencing social isolation with local or statewide activities, programs and
services that are focused on enhancing mental, emotional and physical well-
being. The Contractor shall:

1.5.1. Market and promote existing available services to the target population
through methods most appealing and effective for this group;

1:5.2. Increase and expand access to programming that targets the most,
consistent gap across the State;

1.5.3. Increase and expand access to evidence-based programming
designed to achieve the greatest intended outcomes;

1.5.4. Increase and expand access to prograrbming by decreasing barriers
and/or providing needed tools for accessing programs;

1.5.5. Increase and expand access to programming by ensuring a variety of
options are made available to the target population:

1.5.6. Diminish risk factors that contribute to feelings of social isolation, and
foster protective factors to increase mental, emotional, and physical
well-being; and

1.5.7. Utilize a.Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) consultant to ensure
diversity, equity and inclusion quality control is applied throughout the
project.

1.6. The Contractor shall conduct a statewide needs assessment and gap analysis
to determine tools and resources available to individuals who identify as being
home-based or otherwise isolated. The Contractor shall:

1.6.1. Identify individuals who may be experiencing isolation;

1.6.2. Determine programs that the target population identifies as f^fftl in

L_
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reducing social isolation and improving mental, emotional and physical
well-being;

1.6.3. Determine gaps and barriers experienced by individuals;

1.6.4. Determine diversity and equity deficits and strategies to alleviate those
deficits;

1.6.5. Determine what tools are needed by individuals to participate in
activities, programs and services;

1.6.6. Collaborate with the Department to determine what resources and
trainings are available to assist individuals with access to programming
from.the comfort of their homes.

1.6.7. Determine methods, areas of the state to cover, and final approach to
conducting the statewide needs assessment;

1.6.8. Develop a structured survey tool, tailored to both the target population
and service providers, to address the need for services, available
services, and access to services, including internet and phone;

1.6.9. Identify appropriate languages and associated interpreters to assist
with conducting the survey;

1.6.10. Conduct an online assessment of services by area of the state, and/or
national service offerings and NH's utilization of these services;

1.6.11. Conduct at least 30 half-hour structured interviews with the target
population and service providers;

1.6.12. Conduct at least five (5) focus groups, with the target population and
service providers, using the survey tool to facilitate discussion;

1.6.13. Collate the results of the survey: and

1.6.14. Complete a NH Needs Assessment report identifying the needs, gaps
in services, access and available programs.

1.7. The Contractor shall provide telephone and online activities, education, and/or
an assortment of support groups for older adults, from the comfort of their
home, in order to enhance mental, emotional and physical well-being. The
Contractor shall ensure:

1.7.1. A variety of programming is available at various times in order to
promote optimum participation;

1.7.2. Activities promote social connections among participants; and

1.7.3. All activities and services are safe for individuals ages 60 and older.

■  1.8. The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners, including, but not
limited to Service Link Resource Centers. Public Health Networks an^Jpcal
libraries, to develop and implement a resource library of research-inf^ed
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activities, programs, services and support groups. The Contractor shall:

1.8.1. Create a rubric detailing each region's variety and modality of
programs; times offered; promotion of social connection; and age
appropriateness;

1.8.2. Include instructions on how to register for each activity, program or
service by phone or online, as appropriate;

1.6.3. Use evidence-based research to determine the effectiveness of
programs; and

1.8.4. Update the library on a quarterly basis.

1.9. The Contractor shall maintain program policies and protocols that are
understandable and culturally effective for program participants from diverse
backgrounds. The Contractor shall ensure key elements include, but are not
limited to:

1.9.1. All payors. including individuals who access state or federally
supported programs and/or use their own financial resources, are
served.

1.9.2. Individuals accessing Long-term Services and Supports (LTSS)
receive person-centered services.

1.9.3. Limited English Proficient individuals receive communication access
services according to the Contractor's Language Assistance Plan.

1.10. The Contractor shall conduct outreach to individuals interested in increasing
their social engagement and/or participation in telephone or online activities,
education, and/or an assortment of support groups. The.Contractor shall:

1.10.1. Develop a webpage for the target population to access a variety of
information focused on social engagement;

1.10.2. Develop a communication toolkit with multiple modes of media,
including, but not limited to:

1'.10.2.1. Handouts.

1.10.2.2. QR codes.

1.10.2.3. Social media post samples.

1.10.2.4. Pressreleases.

1.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with community partners to market statewide
activities, programs and services that are focused on enhancing-mental,
emotional and physical well-being for the target population. The Contractor
shall:

1.11.1. Develop a marketing plan, to be approved by the Departmen
target population that includes, but is not limited to:

Iq^the
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1.11.1.1. Social media;

1.11.1.2. Print advertising;

1.11.1.3. Radio; and

1.11.1.4. Grassroots community organizing:

1.11.2. Market the communication toolkit to the ServiceLink Resource Centers
and Public Health Networks in order to leverage public health council
partners and other community partnerships;-

1.11.3. Develop a partnership with the State Library Association in order to-be
a resource of information for distribution to Its members;

1.11.4. Collaborate with the Meals on Wheels program to provide promotional
materials;

1.11.5. Leverage grassroots and community-based organizations, and
statewide partners to advance the promotion of available activities to
potential participants.

1.12. The Contractor shall conduct pre- and post-surveys that measure an
.  individual's outlook on their quality of life as it pertains to social isolation. The

Contractor shall ensure:

1.12.1. The Adult Well-Being Assessment is consistently used with all
program participants.

1.13. The Contractor shall ensure an independent evaluation of the project is
conducted. The Contractor shall ensure evaluators:

1.13.1. Meet with the Contractor throughout the strategy development process
to-identify methods of evaluating the project, including, but not limited
to:

1.13.1.1. The number of individuals who use a system once.

1.13.1.2. The number of repeat users.

1.13.1.3. The impact on users' feelings of isolation/inclusion.

1.13.2. Implement appropriate and effective evaluation tools and processes
for the project;

1.13.3. Provide ongoing verbal reports, to the Contractor, on the.outcomes of
the evaluations, and advises on methods to improve the evaluations,
as needed:and

1.13.4. Draft a comprehensive report based on the evaluation findings.

1.14. The Contractor shall submit all subcontracts to the Department for review and
approval within 30 days of the Agreement effective date.

1.15. To ensure activities, programs and services can continue bey(|r^the
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completion date of this Agreement, the Contractor shall: .
1.15.1. Engage intems to reassess and modify the webpage, and update

materials as needed to promote continued awareness and access of
available activities;

115 2 Inform all ServiceLink Resource Centers and Public Health Networks
regarding program updates during regularly scheduled statewide
meetings; and

1.15.3. Incorporate social isolation reduction strategies into the vaccine
education and awareness center, which is in development with the
Department. ServiceLink, and the Center on Aging and Community
Living at UNH.

1.16. Reporting

1.16.1. The Contractor shall submit rrionthly reports to ensure-program
compliance which-include, but are not limited to:

■  1.16.1.1. Number of participants in the previous month;

1.16.1.2. Age ranges of participants as follows:
1.16.1.2.1.. 60-69

1.16.1.2.2. 70-79

1.16.1.2.3. 80-89

1.16.1.2.4. 90+

1.16.1.3. Source and number of referrals based on outreach;

1.16.1.4. Dates and contacts made to individuals assisted: and

1.16.1.5. Number of activities, programs and services provided, and
the number of participants,for each.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall provide quarterly reporting on pre- and post-
survey results to demonstrate program effectiveness.

1.16.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.17. Performance Measures

1.17.1. The Contractor shall demonstrate the following performance indicator
through pre- and post-surveys:

1.17.1.1. 60% of individuals report a positive outlook on their quality
of life as it pertains to social isolation.

1.17.2. The Department will monitor Contractor performance by reviewing the
monthly and quarterly reports submitted by the Contractor. o,

ft
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2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which

has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. ■ The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve
compliance therev/ith.

3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Compliance: Culturally and Linguistically
Appropriate Programs and Services

3.2.1. The Contractor shall submit, within ten (10) days of the Agreement
Effective Dale, a detailed description of the.communication access
and language assistance services - to be provided to ensure
meaningful access to programs and/or services to individuals with
limited English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have hearing
loss; individuals who are blind or have low vision; and individuals who
have speech challenges.

3.3. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.3.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The

I  preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human. Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services." >--05
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I  . .

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

■ 3.3.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

■  3.3.3.1. Brochures.

3.3.3.2. Resource directories. ,

3.3.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.3.3.4. Posters.

3.3.3.5. Reports.

3.3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accountingprocedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.1.3. Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each
such recipient), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted to the Department to obtain payment for such
services.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder. the
Department, the United States Departnient of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and-upon

.. &
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payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

•PS .

tt
RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA431 B-2.0 Conlraclor Initials,

5/27/2022
Partnership for Public Health, Inc. Page 8 of 8 Oalo



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7E885429-17D7,-4DE5-A3CA-5C96C13E449C

DocuSIgn Envelope 10; 2D24B4FF-B80CMB4A.9014-B3A2400C063A

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Social Isolation Reduction Strategies

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This Agreement is funded by;

1.1. 80% Federal funds:

1.1.1. 42.5%, AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP), as awarded on
4/1/21, by the US Department of Health .8 Human Services,
Administration for Community Living. ARP TITLE lll-E, CFDA
93.052, FAIN2101NHFCC6.

1.1.2. 37.5%, AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN (ARP), as awarded on
4/1/21, by the US Department of Health & Human Services,
Administration for Community Living, ARP TITLE tll-B, CFDA
93.044, FAIN 2101NHSSC6.

1.2. 20% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through C-2,
Budget.

4. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth (15th) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice: . ^

4.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

4.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise"acceptable to the
Department.

4.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

4.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include! but are not limited to. time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

4.5. Is completed, dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

4.6. Is assigned an electronic signature," includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to beasinvoices@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to:

RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCIA-01 C-2,0 Conifactof Initials
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Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

5. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

6. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

8. Audits

8.1. The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the most recentlycompleted fiscal year.

8.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28,.lll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000.000 or more.

,8.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

8.2. If Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single Audit
performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) to
dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's
fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, . Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal awards.

8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of .the corrective action plan.

RFP-2023-BEAS-08-SOCiA-01 C-2.0 Conlraclorlnitials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Social Isolation Reduction Strategies

EXHIBIT C

8.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual
financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120 days after
the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

8.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments made under the Contract
to which exception has been taken, or which have been disallowed
because of such an exception.

....Gi
RFP-2023^BEAS-0^SOClA'01 C-2.0 Conlractor Iniliats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Complato one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name: Partrtership for Public Health. Inc.

Budget Request for: Social IsolBlion Reduction Strategies

Budget Period SPY 2023

Inrilrect Cost Rate (if applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost - Funded by DHHS

1. Salary & Wages
$57,150

2. Fringe Benefits
$17,095

3. Consultants
$2,235

4. Equipment
Ifxiifect cost rate eennol t>e applied to equipment costs per 2 CfR 200.1
and Appendix IV lo 2 CFP 200.

S516

5.(a) SuDolies • Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies - Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

S.(d) Supplies - Medical
$0

5.(e) Supplies Office
$4,645

6. Travel
$1,500

7. Software
$378

fl (a) Other - Marketinq/Communications $15,342

fl (h) Other- Education and Training $500

ft (r.) Other - Other (specify below)
Occupancv

$5,530

Telephone
$1,265

Postaoe
$153

Subscriptions
$272

Audit end Leoal
$1,974

Insurance
$957

9. Subrecipient Contracts
$33,000

Total Direct Costs $142,512

Total Indirect Costs $17,488

TOTAL $160,000

ft

5/27/2022
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8T-1.0 Exhibit C-2 RFP.2023-BEAS-08.SOCIA-01

New Hampshire Depariment of Health and Human Services

Complete one budget form for each budget period.

Contractor Name; Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

Budget Request for; SociBllsolotion Reduction Siralegies

Budget Period SPY 2024

Indirect Cost Rate.(If applicable) 0.00%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

1. Salary & Wages $64,130

2. Fringe Beneflls $17,095

3. Consultants $2,235

4. Equipment
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to epulpment costs per 2 CFR 200. i $516

and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 200.

5.(a) Supplies - Educational $0

5.(b) Supplies • Lab $0

5.(c) Supplies - Pharmacy $0

5.(d) Supplies • Medical $0

S.(e) Supplies Office $1,000

6. Travel
$1.500

7. Software $378

B. (a) Other - Marftetinq/Communications $13,242

8. (b) Other - Education and Training $500

8. (c) Other - Other (specify below)

OccuoancY $5,530

Telephone $1,265

Postaae $153

Subscnpf/ons $272

Audit and Leoal $1,974

Insurance $957

9. Subreciplent Contracts $31,765

Total Direct Costs $142,512

Total Indirect Costs $17,488

TOTAL $160,000

>o»

1t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 {Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification Is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151 -5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V. Subtitle 0; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691). and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub<ontractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is' placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. *
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the FederaJ^agency

Exhibil D - Certification fegafdir>g Drug Free Vendor initials
WorVplace Requirements 5/27/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number{s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted

.  1.8.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or ' .

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2, The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, stale, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

S/27/2022

Date

Vendor Name: Partnership for Public Health, inc

/  DocuSiorwd 6y. »

Name:
Title:

^f^'^r^'Carmichael
Executive Director

CuoKHsrno7i)

Exhibil 0 - Certification regarding Drug Free
Workplace Requiremenis
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Reslrlctions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and .1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in ^
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influericing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of'Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention siib-granlee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and Identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loansi and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed .when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who falls to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

VendorName: partnership for Public Health, inc.

>.^-OocuSlgn*4 by;

5/27/2022 iluHtriL CamiiixAd
Dili W'^'TOW-Carmichael ~

Title:
Executive Director

tt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certificdtion;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION ■

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below:

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Departrrienl of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter Into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation In .

.  this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter Into this transaction. If it Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transactiori," "participant." "person," "primary covered transaction." "principal," "proposal." and
"voluntarily excluded." as used In this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules Implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended,, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from parlicipatlorl in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibllity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction; unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremenl List (of excluded parlies).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of rewrds
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and("~"

tt
Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

information of a participant Is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business.dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these Instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily exduded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempUng to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity.
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4.. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal,* State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing arid submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 46 CFR Part 76, certifies to the bes\ of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1.- are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that It will
Include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, inc

, — DeeuSigncd by:

S/27/2022

Oate l^f?f^f'fSffl^^~carmichael
Title:

Executive Director

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLQWER PROTECTIONS

The Conlractor idenlined in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represenlaUve as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

. the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of.services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);
- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pl- 42
fU S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighljorhood organizations,

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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Exhibit G

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or Stale administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing.on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1,12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Corilractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, inc

>0MuSlgn«4 by:

5/27/2022

Qg(g Namei^mera Carmichael
Title:- Executive Director

Exhibit G
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an.entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penally of up to
S1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, inc

r—D«cw91on*4 bjr:
q3^0 Name:^^^^ carrmchael

Title: Executive Director

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
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Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABIUTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Agareaation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII. Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of

■  2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability, and Accountability Act of 1996. Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 1.64.501(g).

j. "Privacv Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or receiv
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.
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I. "Required bv Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her deslgnee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that is not

secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized indiyiduals and is deyeloped or endorsed by
a standards deyeloping organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall haye the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160.162 and 164. as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to proyide the seryices outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a yiolation of the Priyacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate:
II. As required by law. pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Cdyered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Priyacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably-necessary to
proyide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busifi^
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI In violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) ObliQatlons and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. ■ The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any .of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to;

0 The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0  The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the SecreUry for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same '
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (1). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business ̂ gpiate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiviho PiHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

I

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thp«p*
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all.PHl, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph .10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit 1. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
deterrriines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered'Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Requlatorv References. All terms used, but not othenwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, arnended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from tinie to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule,
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Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit 1 are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in' section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the

• standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services Partnership for Public Health, inc.
by: ^sass9f.Jb^ Contractor

Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Christine santaniello Tamera carraichael

Name of Authorized Representative Name of Authorized Representative
Associate Commissioner

Executive Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/1/2022 5/27/2022

Date Date
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILrTY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award Is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the dale of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
T Nanie of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants '
5. Program source
6. < Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
0. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2.. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment is made.
The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 QFR Part-170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and furtfier agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with ail applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: Partnership for Public Health, Inc.

-Do«uS>en«4 »y;

5/27/2022 •

Dili"
Title. Executive Director
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

786707856

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or. organization's preceding completed fiscal year. did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES. please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:,

Name:,

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CVOHH3/11071)

1t
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document;

1. "Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or eleclronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information," Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section

-  164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
incident" In section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National -Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one parly to the other such as" all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI). Personal Information (PI), Personal. Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI). Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHhiS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract..

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a

•  system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics vwthout the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or eleclronic

tt
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mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and .
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8  "Personal Information" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an Individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19. biometric records, etc..
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's'maiden
name. etc.

9  "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164. promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.10.3.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
■ Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.-

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of Inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract. ^

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.,

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and.being sent to and being'received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File. Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User "is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

.[«
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit .Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP). also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
'End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of information.

RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. • Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or'process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systerhs.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6  The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors.as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations! When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance "with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization; or otherwise physically destroying the. media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessqry to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,'
regulatory ,and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless othenwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to deslroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1  The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be.
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement,

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United ,States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, .promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response'and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations'regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. provisions of-the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a). DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the'level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will'notify the States Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided In Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor rhust ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

.  d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received.by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours {e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials {user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through,
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite Inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided In herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING
f

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI. ■

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to; and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents

and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. ■ Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach- notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
,applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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